
 

 

 

 

Agenda 

 

Board of Directors 
 

Friday, April 12, 2019 

Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting 

Kent County Commission Chambers 

300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 

 

 

1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock  

 

2. Minutes of February 1, 2019        Action 

 

3. Committee Reports 

  

 A. Operations Committee        Information 

     
 B. Finance Committee 

  i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending   Action 

   February 28, 2019 

  ii. SMG February 2019 Financial Statements –    Information 

   DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® 

   

4. Preliminary FY 2020 Capital Plan       Information 

 

5. 15-Year Capital Outlook (to be available at meeting)     Information 

 

6. Proof of Concept Task Force Update       Steve Heacock 
 

7. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars       Rich MacKeigan 

 

8. Public Comment 

 

9. CAA Board Member Comments 

 

10. Adjournment  

 

 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, May 3, 2019 

Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting 

 

 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

300 MONROE AVENUE, NW | GRAND RAPIDS, MI 

Friday, February 1, 2019 

 

 

Attendance  

  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chair 

   Rosalynn Bliss 

   Birgit Klohs 

   Charlie Secchia 

   Floyd Wilson, Jr.  

   Richard Winn 

 

Members Absent: Lew Chamberlin   

    

 Staff/Others:  Wayman Britt   Kent County 

    Thomas Coomes  Citigroup 

    Jeff Edwards   Rockford Construction 

    Brian McVicar   The Grand Rapids Press/MLive 

    Chris Machuta   SMG 

    Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 

    Eddie Tadlock   SMG 

    Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 

    John Van Houten  Progressive AE 

    Susan Waddell   CAA 

    Mark Washington  City of Grand Rapids 

    Robert White   CAA 

    Jessica Wood   Dickinson Wright 

     

1. Call to Order  

 

Chair Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:20 a.m.  Treasurer, Richard Winn, recorded the meeting 

minutes.   

 

2. Minutes of Prior Meeting 

 

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Winn, to approve the January 11, 2019, Minutes.  Motion carried. 

 

3. Committee Reports 

 

A. Operations Committee 

 

i. Experience Grand Rapids Report 

 

Mr. Small an overview of the CVB’s recent bookings, sales activities, site visits, marketing efforts, and 

major bid presentations.  In January, staff booked three groups for the convention center, hosted four site 

visits, and attended client events and trade shows.   

 

 

 

 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
February 1, 2019 – 2 

 

 

 B. Finance Committee 

 

  i. Acceptance of December 2018 Consolidated Financial Statement 

 

Motion:  Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Bliss, moved to accept the December 2018 Consolidated Financial 

Statements.  Motion carried. 

 

  ii. SMG December 2018 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®  

   Financial Statements 

 

The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.   

 

ii. Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting 

 

Mr. White presented a quarterly report regarding the City/County utilization of discounted DeVos Place® 

monthly parking passes. 

 

4. Extension of Audit Services Agreement 

 

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Winn, for acceptance the Rehmann Robson proposal to extend audit 

services as it relates to the CAA and concurrence of the Rehmann Robson proposal to extend audit 

services as it relates to SMG, for fiscal years 2019-2021, as recommended.  Motion carried.   

 

5. Resolution Approving Lake Michigan Credit Union as Depository Authority 

 

Boardmember Floyd Wilson, Jr., supported by Boardmember Richard Winn, moved the adoption of the 

following resolution: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority (the “Authority”) is an 

authority created pursuant to Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999, as amended (“Act 203”), 

with such powers and responsibilities as provided in Act 203, its Articles of Organization and its Bylaws; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 8.2 of the Bylaws provides that all funds of the CAA shall be deposited as 

required by Act 203 and placed in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as selected by the 

Board of Directors of the CAA (the “Board”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined to designate Lake Michigan Credit Union (“LMCU”) as 

a depository for CAA funds. 

 

 RESOLVED: 

 

1. That LMCU is designated as a depository of CAA funds and to provide other financial 

accommodations as provided in this Resolution. 

 

2. That the Chairperson or any other officer of the Board may (a) open any deposit or share 

account(s) in the name of the CAA, (b) endorse checks and orders for the payment of money or otherwise 

withdrawal or transfer funds on deposit, (c) enter into a written lease for the purpose of renting, 

maintaining, accessing and terminating a safe deposit box and (d) exercise all other powers designated in 

this Resolution. 

 

 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
February 1, 2019 – 3 

 

 

3. That with respect to such depository designation the CAA acknowledges, represents and 

agrees that: 

 

a. The signature of the Chairperson or any other office of the CAA is conclusive 

evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the CAA. 

b. The terms and conditions of any account agreement, properly opened by the 

Chairperson or any other officer of the CAA and LMCU, at any time is authorized to charge for 

all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on LMCU. 

c. That LMCU may furnish at its discretion automated access devices to facilitate 

those powers authorized by this Resolution or other resolutions in effect at the time of issuance 

(the term “automated access device” includes, but is not limited to, credit cards, automated teller 

machines (ATM), and debit card). 

d. That LMCU (i) may rely on alternative signature and verification codes issued to 

or obtained from the Chairperson or any other officer of the CAA (the term “alternative 

signature and verification codes” includes, but is not limited to, facsimile signatures on file with 

LMCU, personal identification numbers (“PIN”), and digital signatures) and if a facsimile 

signature specimen has been provided by the CAA, (ii) is authorized to treat the facsimile 

signature as the signature of the Chairperson or any other officer of the CAA regardless of by 

whom or by what means the facsimile signature may have been affixed so long as it resembles the 

facsimile signature specimen on file, and (iii) authorizes the Chairperson or any other officer of 

the CAA to have custody of LMCU’s private key used to create a digital signature and to request 

issuance of a certificate listing the corresponding public key. 

 

4. That the CAA’s Administrative Manager shall have access to the information contained 

in the CAA accounts at LMCU for such purposes as preparing audit confirmation letters and reviewing 

such accounts to resolve discrepancies and provide explanations. 

 

5. That this Resolution does not conflict with or contravene the CAA’s Articles of 

Organization and Bylaws. 

 

6. That this Resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of its 

recession or modification has been received by LMCU. 

 

7. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same are 

hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict. 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

6. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 

 

Mr. MacKeigan stated that attendance at tomorrow’s Asian Lunar New Year event will be twice as large 

as last year. 

 

7. Public Comment 

 

None. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
February 1, 2019 – 4 

 

 

 

 

8. Adjournment 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:35 a.m.  The next CAA Board meeting is Friday, April 12, 2019.   

 

 

 

     ______________________________________   

Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility

Rolling Forecast 2

Year-to-Date Comparable 3

Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY18 & FY19 4

Lagging 12-Month Comparison - 3/16 Through 2/19 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts

Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Grand Rapids-Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report

February 28, 2019



Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 78                 55                 59                   16                   19                  22                           

Attendance 458,306        378,500        429,328          134,224          159,000         198,399                  

Event Income 2,675,987$   2,146,579$   2,903,701$     1,516,496$     1,517,465$    2,163,527$             

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 338               311               344                 92                   101                107                         

Attendance 475,323        390,965        418,341          89,857            100,010         86,884                    

Event Income 4,662,863$   4,321,649$   4,380,324$     1,404,208$     1,379,438$    1,532,814$             

Prior Year Budget Actual

Operating Income (Loss) 2,532,725$     1,170,700$    2,675,068$             

Capital/Repair/Replacement (1,725,961)     (2,481,065)     (2,327,868)             

Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance 806,764$        (1,310,365)$   347,200$                
(1)

*NOTES: (1):

      Unrestricted Fund Balance @ June 30, 2018 23,703,790$   

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard

Year-To-Date (8 Months)

February 28, 2019

DeVos Place®

-1-



FY 2018

7/1 - 2/28

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate
(1)

Budget Prior Year

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 4,621,257$       2,678,588$      7,299,845$      5,847,699$      6,767,205$     

                    - Expenses - Facilities (2,782,702)       (1,570,631)$     (4,353,333)       (4,302,641)       (4,536,357)     

                               - Base Management Fees (117,627)          (58,813)$          (176,440)          (176,440)          (176,440)        

                               - Incentive Fee -                       (181,149)$        (181,149)          (92,319)           (133,957)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,720,928        867,995$         2,588,923        1,276,299        1,920,451      

   Parking 269,041           98,959$           368,000           454,000           366,974         

   Pedestrian Safety (43,701)            (66,299)$          (110,000)          (110,000)          (82,923)          

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 1,946,268        900,655$         2,846,923        1,620,299        2,204,502      

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 4,408,724        2,179,339$      6,588,063        6,519,176        7,192,939      

                   - Expenses - Facilities (4,343,574)       (2,064,859)$     (6,408,433)       (6,360,926)       (6,803,548)     

                              - Base Management Fees (117,627)          (58,813)$          (176,440)          (176,440)          (176,440)        

                              - Incentive Fee -                       (171,731)$        (171,731)          (260,561)          (218,923)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (52,477)            (116,064)$        (168,541)          (278,751)          (5,972)            

   Parking 918,294           361,706$         1,280,000        1,247,069        1,272,941      

   Pedestrian Safety (23,739)            (26,261)$          (50,000)           (58,100)           (45,050)          

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 842,078           219,381$         1,061,459        910,218           1,221,919      

Other

   Revenues 422,773           157,227$         580,000           512,000           397,523         

   Expenses (536,051)          (547,080)$        (1,083,131)       (1,123,131)       
(3)

(913,502)        
(2)

     Net Other (113,278)          (389,853)$        (503,131)          (611,131)          (515,979)        

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 2,675,068        730,183$         3,405,251        1,919,386        2,910,442      

Capital Expenditures (2,327,868)       (3,707,125)$     (6,034,993)       (6,188,190)       
(4)

(2,618,105)     

Results Net of Capital Expenditures 347,200$         (2,976,942)$     (2,629,742)$     (4,268,804)$     292,337$       

Notes:
(1)

 Third Quarter Update to be Provided with April Financial Report (5/3/19 Board Meeting).
(2)

 Includes One-Time Contribution, of $200,000, to Deferred Compensation Plan.
(3)

 Includes budget amendment to provide for hotel study carryover balance of $39,513.
(4)

 Includes budget amendment to provide for several capital project balances carried over from FY 18.  See June 2018

    consolidated financial report for details. 

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019

FY 2019

-2-



Annual Year-To-Date

FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage

Final Budget Change 7/1-2/28 7/1 - 2/28 Change

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 6,767,205$    5,847,699$      (13.6) 4,225,330$      4,621,257$        9.4

                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,536,357)     (4,302,641)      5.2 (2,816,952)      (2,782,702)        1.2

                               - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (176,440)         0.0 (117,627)         (117,627)           0.0

                               - Incentive Fee (133,957)        (92,319)           31.1             -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,920,451      1,276,299        (33.5)            1,290,751        1,720,928          33.3

   Parking 366,974         454,000           23.7 257,625           269,041             4.4               

   Pedestrian Safety (82,923)          (110,000)         (32.7) (44,630)           (43,701)             2.1               

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 2,204,502      1,620,299        (26.5) 1,503,746        1,946,268          29.4             

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 7,192,939      6,519,176        (9.4)              4,707,940        4,408,724          (6.4)

                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,803,548)     (6,360,926)      6.5 (4,269,737)      (4,343,574)        (1.7)

                              - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (176,440)         0.0 (117,627)         (117,627)           0.0

                              - Incentive Fee (218,923)        (260,561)         (19.0)            -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (5,972)            (278,751)         (4567.6) 320,576           (52,477)             (116.4)

   Parking 1,272,941      1,247,069        (2.0) 826,285           918,294             11.1

   Pedestrian Safety (45,050)          (58,100)           (29.0)            (24,616)           (23,739)             3.6               

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,221,919      910,218           (25.5) 1,122,245        842,078             (25.0)

Other

   Revenues 397,523         512,000           28.8 279,980           422,773             51.0             

   Expenses (913,502)        (1,123,131)      (22.9) (373,247)         (536,051)           (43.6)

     Net Other (515,979)        (611,131)         (18.4)            (93,267)           (113,278)           (21.5)

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 2,910,442      1,919,386        (34.1)            2,532,724        2,675,068          5.6               

Capital/Repair Expenditures (2,618,105)     (6,188,190)      (136.4) (1,725,961)      (2,327,868)        (34.9)

Results Net of Capital Expenditures 292,337$       (4,268,804)      (1,460.2)       806,763$         347,200$           (57.0)            

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2019

-3-



-4-



-5-



Van Andel Arena®

      Page 1 - Twenty-two concerts generated $2,163,527 in event revenue, an increase of 42.7% from

prior year (16 concerts) of $1,516,496.

        Page 3 - Net proceeds of $1,946,268 increased by 29.4% from prior year of $1,503,746.

DeVos Place®

      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $1,532,814 in event revenue, an

increase of +9.2% from prior year (attendance decreased from 89,857 to 86,884) of $1,404,208.

        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of $842,078 decreased by (25.0%) from prior year Net Proceeds

of $1,122,246.

Significant Notes

-6-



FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage FY 2018 FY 2019 Percentage

Final Budget Change 7/1-2/28 7/1/-2/28 Change

Other

Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 282,816$     392,000$     38.6             166,596$         309,270$       85.6             

Miscellaneous 114,707       120,000       4.6               113,384           113,503         0.1               

397,523       512,000       28.2             279,980           422,773         51.0             

Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 208,333       200,000       (4.0)              75,000             200,000         166.7           

Diversity Initiative 60,420         275,000       355.1           35,662             18,744           (47.4)            

Wages/Benefits 141,012       140,318       (0.5)              79,367             81,750           3.0               

Professional Services 86,103         78,000         (9.4)              49,584             35,539           (28.3)            

DID Assessment 60,326         58,200         (3.5)              40,254             62,616           55.6             

Food & Beverage Repairs -                   40,000         100.0+ -                      -                     -                 

Consulting Services 73,006         189,513       
(1)

159.6           18,694             65,283           249.2           

Landscaping 24,346         25,000         2.7               24,346             11,340           (53.4)            

Procurement of Art 13,188         30,000         127.5           8,056               26,214           225.4           

Insurance 14,713         27,100         84.2             21,260             21,457           0.9               

Supplies/Other 232,055       
(2)

60,000         (74.1)            21,024             13,108           (37.7)            

913,502       1,123,131    22.9             373,247           536,051         43.6             

Net Proceeds - Operating (515,979)$    (611,131)$    (18.4)            (93,267)$         (113,278)$      (21.5)            

Notes: .
(1)

Includes SMG $53,225 and $39,513 for hotel study, and $96,775 for "destination asset study follow-up work."
(2)

Includes $200,000 one-time payment to deferred comp. trust.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

February 28, 2019

-7-



































Working Capital List

Project FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22

DeVos Place

Loading Dock/Ramps/Ehall Truss to LED Lighting 60,000           

Marquee Upgrades 1,200,000     

security office and lobby changes double doors and magloks 30,000           

more furniture areas to include outdoor 50,000           

Carpet:  Keeler Lobby 54,300           

Carpet:  DVPH 289,280         

Carpet:  Skywalk 115,230         

Carpet:  Ballroom 518,480         

Carpet:  Chase Boardroom 26,020           

airwall fabric replacments 70,000           70,000           

VFD drive replacments in phases 250,000         

Elevator modernization program 100,000         

camera additions per Todd and midstate 50,000           

V1 elevator jack replacment proactive 125,000         

overhead door replacment on Lyon dock 4 ramp door 50,000           

projection theater upgrades 200,000         

snake light work and or replacment 250,000         

theater bathrooms keeler all womens and mens on 1st floor sides 620,000         

OSHA safety changes 75,000           75,000           

Performance Hall LED lighting 100,000         

Fly Rail System 1,700,000     

Lyon Street Landscaping 200,000         200,000         200,000         

Roof Replacement - Exhibit Hall Section 2,000,000     

Trash Compactor

DVP - New Additions 

New Directional Screens 75,000           

Replace the pads on the padded banquet chairs

New Security Cameras - Elevators

ArchFlash

Exhibit Hall Lighting & Controls - LED 700,000         

New Small Motor Equipment 50,000           50,000           50,000           

Van Andel Arena

Aisle lighters to LED and programming to ION board 80,000           

Compressor rebuilds (3) (phase 4 of 4) 90,000           

Exterior corrosion control/paint  *** 1,000,000     

Elevator moderization program 250,000         

new roof cost - phase 1 Main roof 1,000,000     

South end concrete repair 70,000           

ribbon board front plaza over entry door overhangs 100,000         

Center Hung Scoreboard 2,000,000     

exterior box office 230,000         

ice plant refrigeration change 1,000,000     

Food and beverage 35,000           

suite refresher - furniture/paint/flooring 200,000         200,000         

Lockerroom Updgrades ($2M total project cost) 1,000,000     1,000,000     

Landscaping 500,000         500,000         

Savor - Point of Sale System 200,000         

VAA - New Additions

Security Upgrades (scanner access/elevator cameras)

Skywalk HVAC 275,000         

Both Venues

New Computers 150,000         

New Phone Systems 250,000         

Total 5,130,000     6,014,600     6,288,710     2,300,000     

***A More Affordable Option to be discussed***



Grand Rapids – Kent County Arena/Convention Authority 
Proof of Concept Task Force for the Convention Hotel and Amphitheater Concepts 

 

                      1 

 

CAA Convention Hotel/Amphitheater Proof of Concept Task Force 

Task Force Charge 
 

The CAA Board committee that considered the possibility of a CAA convention hotel and/or 

amphitheater project concluded that both are – in concept -- potential projects for the CAA and 

the community.   The Proof of Concept Task Force is the next step in the process to determine if 

the CAA should pursue the convention hotel and/or the amphitheater projects.  Its task is to work 

with staff to gather the information that the Board will need to begin deliberations regarding the 

potential projects.  

 

Background:  

 

The Grand Rapids Destination Asset study, sponsored by Grand Action and supported by 

Experience Grand Rapids, the CAA and others, found that Grand Rapids/Kent County, if it is to 

continue to compete as a desirable convention destination, needs an additional convention hotel 

(i.e. a full-service hotel with at least 400 rooms and significant common space for a ballroom and 

meeting rooms).  After determining that no private sector solution was likely (because 

construction of a full-service convention hotel would require more investment capital than is 

justified by the potential return), the CAA accepted EGR’s request that the CAA determine 

whether a public sector solution was possible. This finding is consistent with what is happening 

in most markets nationwide.   

  

The amphitheater idea was first broached by the CAA over 10 years ago, partially in response to 

the federal government’s request for “shovel-ready” economic development projects that could 

be used to stimulate the economy.  When funding was not forthcoming, the idea was shelved but 

not forgotten.  Given the growth in Kent County and continued success of the Van Andel Arena, 

a summer-time equivalent to the Van Andel Arena could help make Grand Rapids/Kent County 

the premier summer-time destination in the Midwest, if not beyond.  The vision is to continue the 

great momentum we are enjoying and to join other community projects in assuring that Grand 

Rapids and Kent County continue to provide an excellent quality of life to its citizens and an 

interesting and welcoming place for visitors.        

 

 

Charge:   

 

Accumulate adequate evidence to allow the Board to consider and determine whether the 

convention hotel and amphitheater concepts are feasible and advantageous to the community and 

the CAA.  

 

The convention hotel proof should gather information that will allow the Board to:  

• Confirm whether Grand Rapids needs another convention center hotel to fully utilize DeVos 

Place capacity and to continue to compete with other cities for convention business. 

• Determine whether the DeVos Place location is the best location for a convention center 

hotel.  



Grand Rapids – Kent County Arena/Convention Authority 
Proof of Concept Task Force for the Convention Hotel and Amphitheater Concepts 

 

                      2 

 

• Determine whether public sector involvement is required or whether the private sector is 

likely to provide a convention hotel.  

• Determine the desirability and feasibility of a public/private partnership  

• Determine the minimum and optimal size and features (e.g. ball room, meeting rooms) for a 

convention hotel that will allow us to compete adequately within the convention marketplace.  

• Identify the cost and timetable for building such a convention hotel. 

• Identify possible financing vehicles and total cost to construct and operate. 

• Determine options available for the operation of the convention hotel. 

• Develop a pro forma for convention hotel operations.  

• Determine whether such a convention hotel would likely be financially feasible and would 

provide enough financial benefit to justify the investment and risk.  

• Determine the impact a convention hotel would have on DeVos Place and other impacted 

entities (financial impact and otherwise) 

• Provide any other evidence the Task Force believes is helpful to the CAA.   

 

The amphitheater proof should gather information that will allow the Board to:  

• Confirm whether Grand Rapids needs an outdoor amphitheater to serve the Arena’s purpose 

during the summer months.  

• Determine whether there is an available location that provide an economic impact beyond the 

amphitheater itself.   

• Determine whether public sector involvement is required or whether the private sector is 

likely to provide an amphitheater. 

• Determine the desirability and feasibility of a public/private partnership  

• Determine the minimum and optimal size and features for an amphitheater.  

• Identify the cost and timetable for building such a facility. 

• Identify possible financing vehicles and total cost to construct and operate. 

• Determine options available for the operation of the amphitheater. 

• Develop a pro forma for amphitheater operations.  

• Determine whether an amphitheater would likely be financially feasible and would provide 

enough financial benefit to justify the investment and risk.  

• Determine the impact an amphitheater would have on Van Andel Arena and other impacted 

entities (financial impact and otherwise) 

• Provide any other evidence the Task Force believes is helpful to the CAA.   

 

Timing 

The hope is that the task force will quickly move through its work, gather the information need 

for the Board to decide as to the potential viability of each project and make a recommendation 

to the CAA Board as soon as is able to do so, hopefully no later than calendar year-end.    

 

 

Membership:  

Doug Small, Experience Grand Rapids -- CHAIR 

Birgit Klohs, CAA  

Floyd Wilson, CAA 

Jill Ferris, CAA Finance Committee  



Grand Rapids – Kent County Arena/Convention Authority 
Proof of Concept Task Force for the Convention Hotel and Amphitheater Concepts 

 

                      3 

 

Mark Washington, City of Grand Rapids 

Roger Morgan, County of Kent 

Tim Kelly – DGRI  

 

The Task Force will be staffed by Rich MacKeigan and his staff and have access to any outside 

expertise it deems necessary (e.g. Progressive A/E, Citibank SMG Corporate resources, etc.).  

 

Steve Heacock 

March 5, 2019 

 


	Agenda.CAA.pdf (p.1)
	February.2019.pdf (p.2-5)
	February 2019.pdf (p.6-13)
	SMG Financial Statement.February 2019.pdf (p.14-29)
	SMG FY 2020 Working Capital List.pdf (p.30)
	proof of concept committee charge - final.pdf (p.31-33)

